HA-1053

SUMMARY

George Jones House
3303 Churchville Road
Aberdeen, Maryland 21001

The George Jones house is one element in an essentially unaltered example
of a typical 19th century Harford County Farm site. Also included are a smoke-
house, milkhouse, and a barn constructed with hewn timbers and pegged joints.
Grain and tomatoes were the principal crops here. Archival evidence suggests the
house was constructed during the period 1850-1860. In any case, the house has
been in the same family since 1856, thus establishing a 130 year kinship between
land and people, that hints at the stable prosperity of hardworking farmers.
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This two-story frame house built in three sections is located on the southeast
corner of the intersection of Churchville Road (Md. Rte.22) and Snake Lane in Harford
County, Maryland. The north and south sides of all three sections are flush: on the
south side, the west and center sections are both two bays wide, and the east wing is
one bay wide; all sections are one bay deep. (The center and east sections are the same
height; the west wing is slightly taller.) Set on a high stone foundation, the house
is covered in clapboards and has a gable roof and two brick interior chimneys, one in
the west end =nd one in the east end of the center section. All first story windows have
6/6 sash with narrow beaded trim (the center section trim is narrower than that on the
two wings). The basement windows have six lights; the second story windows in the center
and east sections have 3/6 sash, and those in the west wing have 6/6 sash.

The west wing which was built last, has a door with a pgabled portico in the first
story east bay, flanked on the west by a window. The second story has two windows aligned
with those in the first story. The west end has one window north of center in both the
first and second stories. The north side is like the south, except the door in the east
bay has been blocked up.

The center section has a four-panel door reached by a flight of wooden steps in the
east bay, flanked on the west by a window. In the second story are two windows; the one
in the east bay is east of the door in the first story. In the basement west bay is a
window, and in the east bay is a hatch. In the north side, the first story has a door
(blocked-up) in the center bay, flanked by a window on each side. The two windows in .
the second story are aligned with those in the first. >

The east section has a window in the first and second stories in the south side.

. In the east end is a board-and-batten door reached by a flight of wooden steps, and
there is a square, covered opening in the gable. In the north side, there is a window
in both the first and second stories.

The interior plan of the first floor is simple with one room in each section. In
the west wing, the windows and doors have plain trim, and there is a plain baseboard.

In the south corner of the east wall is a door with two steps to the center section, and
in the center of the west wall is a fireplace., The mantel has a cyma recta shelf, a
raised oval panel in the frieze, and an ogee-arched opening, flanked by pilasters with
raised ovals.

The center section has a winder staircase in the southwest torner and a door to
the east wing in the northeast cormer. In the center of the east wall is a fireplace;
the mantelpiece has a molded shelf and a brick opening with a segmental pointed arch
flanked by pilasters. Under the stairs is a closet, and both the closet and stairs have
beaded board-and-batten doors. This room has a plain baseboard.

The east section contains the present kitchen. At one time, there were stairs to
the basement and, il the northeast corner, stairs to the second floor, This room has
a beaded board wainscot and plain trim.

On the second floor, there is one room each in the west and east wings, and two
rooms and a hall on the south side in the center section.

Also on the property is a board-and-~-batten, gable-roofed smokehouse east of the
house and, south of the house, a milkhouse covered with asphalt shingles,and a frame
barn. The gable-roofed barn (with the date 1881 carved on an interior beam) is on a
hill, so the stone foundation is a full story on the south side. In the north side are
large double doors. The east end has two louvered openings in the main level, another ...
in the gable, and, in the lower stone level, a Dutch door in the south bay and a square

SEE CONTINUATION SHuET#1
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This parcel has historical significance as part of the original Stony Ridge tract.
The house, however, probably dates from 1856-1859, when Jarvis and Deborah James pur-
chased the land the house is on in two separatf parcels - in 1856, fifty acres from

Richard Green and He
and Charlotte Gawthrop,

D. Farnandis for $#300,

and in 1859, 15k acres from Richard
The James' sold the property to Jarrett B. Moore in 1865 for

ﬁ12003, the jump in price indicating the probable erection of a house, and the house
has stayed in the same family since then, The Portrait and Biographical Record of
Harford and Cecil Counties, published in 1897, describes Jarrett Moore as "the owner

of a well-improved farm in District No. 3", O Scotch descent, he was born in 1837

in Bel Air to carpenter-farmer James Moore (b.1801) and Johanna Boddin, who had three
~~ther sons. He was trairel as a carpenter himself, abandoned the irade at age 29 to take

.~ raising grain and tomatoes for canning on part of Stony Ridge farm., He married Sarah
Cole in 1865 and had three sons, Archer, Charles G., and Harry, the latter taking pos-
session of the house in 1914? In 1949, Anita Moore Jones and her husband inherited

the property, and it is still in their hands.

Although the house is not unusual architecturally, the farm as a whole with its milk-

house, smokehouse, and barn, merits attention. Few farms in Harford County have survived
with their outbuildings intact. This one, in particular, is a fine representation of a

late 19th century farm since it has not been altered and has been well-maintzined.

FOOTNOTES 2

i 8
Liber 7, folio 107; Jan.23,1856.

2 .
Liber 11, folio 10, April 7,1859.

Liber 13, folio 9; March 25, 1865.

The Portrait and Biographical Record of Harford and Cecil Counties, Md.,p.198.

™ W\ F W

Liber 145, folio 51; March 5, 1914.

Liber 337, folio 91-2; Nov.30, 1949,
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY 2y
EE1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE

Natalie Shivers, Historic Sites Surveyor

ORGANIZATION DATE

Harford County Historic District Commission January, 1979

STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE

45 South Main Street 301-879-2000- Ext. 207

CITY OR TOWN STATE

Bel Air, Md., 21014

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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George Jones house
DESCRIPTION (Continued) Nll- 053

opening in the north bay. The south side has a door in the first story center bay, flanked
f~ the west by double six-light windows; in the second story center bay is a window. The

.25t end is like the east, except there are no openings in the foundation. The interior

of the barn has hand-hewn beams which are pegged together.
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INVENTORY NO. ﬁb-l(zS& ELECTION DISTRICT

DATE: 1/79 TAX MAP XC.

REMODELING: Drastic, moderate, minor PARCEL NO.

NAME OF PROPERTY: ‘George Jones House

LOCATION OF PROPERTY: 3303 Churchville Road, nr. Aberdeen

DIRECTION DWELLING FACES: south '

NAME OF OWNER: George Jones

ADDRESS: 3303 Churchville Rd., Aberdeen, Md. 21001

STORIES: 1[ ] 2[x] 3[ ] 4[] 5[] 6[ ] BAYS:
WINGS, ADDITIONS:

constructed in three phases

WALL CONSTRUCTION:

] FRAME: Bevel, clapboard, weatherboard, wood shingies, board & batten{t.pe?)

L ] BRIZK: Bond type- common, English, Flemish. Sketch variants.

i 1 STONE: Bond type- rubble, ashiar (random or reqular), quoins-plain, rusticated
[ ] LOG

WALL FEATURES: BELT COURSE, PILASTERS, OTHERS
FOUNDATIONS: _HIGH, LOW, BRICK, STONE
WATER TABLE: NONE, PLAIN, BEVELED, MOULDED BRICK

WINDOWS, TRIM, SHUTTERS: 1/10 1 2/2[ ] 6/6[x] 9/6[ ] 9/9[ ] other[ ]
pegged[ 7 nailed[ ] wide[ ] narrow[ ]
originall 1 replaced[ ]

ENTRANCE, DOORS: LOCATION: 2 south side, 1 east end, 2 north side
HARDWARE: originall ] replaced] ]
FAN LIGHT, TRAMNSOM, SIDE LIGHTS, PLAIN

CORNICE, BARGE, EAVES:
originall ] rezplaced
boxed and barge boaﬁh L] g L]
ROOF: GABLE FRONT, GABLE FLANK, HIP, MANSARD, FLAT, DGRMERS
#4ATIRIAL:  wood shingles, slate, tin, asphalt original[ ] replaces]

bned

PORCHES: SHAPE OF ROOF - shed[ ] nip[ ] gable[ ]
CHIMNEYS: NUMBER 2 BRICK[K ] STONE[ ] CORBELED[ ] original[ ] replacedl ]

LOCATION: west end, east end center .section

ARCHES :
COMMENTS:



Background Information on Mitchell properties in Snake Lane vicinity Ll/3~l(§f§;§

On October 4, 1779; Amos Cord conveyed 150 acres of "Stony Ridge Enlargement' to
John Mitchell for the sum of 500 pounds.1 In a description of the boundaries of Mitchell's
land, tRis property was referred to as par:t of "Stony Ridge" and '"Paca's Enlargement",2
Originally, this land had belonged to John Paca, who in 1775 conveyed it to John Blackburn 3
Blackburn then sold it to Thomas Perigrine Farsby who exchanged it with Amos Cord in 1776.4

Also, on December 17, 1783, John Stevenson sold 243 acres of ''Stony Ridge'" to John
Mitchell for 486 pounds.> And in 1800, Captain James Philips of Baltimore City congeyed
100 acres of Stony Ridge, which he had inherited from his father, to John Mitchell.

This parcel had been confiscated from James Christie after the Revolution and sold by
commissioners ~ppointed to preserve confiscated British property to James Philips on
October 1, 1782 for 100 pounds.

John Mitchell (b. 1737, d. 1801), has been described as "a respected and thrifty
millwright." He married Mary Tidball in 1765 and had eight children. The property we
are concerned with here~i.e. on the north side of Snake Lane-presumably passed to John
Mitchell's son, Elijah, and then to Elijah's three sons William, Robert, and Elisha.’

It is said that in 1831 Eiisha Mitchell possessed the land og which the Bechtold-
Lohr house and the Mitchell-Lauterbach (HA-2®®) house now stand.® William's house
burned., Robert owned the property where the Winfield Mitchell house (HA-Q286 ), the
Mitchell Tenant house #1, the Markline house, and the Mitchell-Magness house are now
situated. Robert probably lived in the house now owned by William Craig, located behind
the Mitchell-Magness house. However, that structure has been altered extensively, and
the house as Robert Mitchell would have known it is unrecognizable.

Robert Mitchell married Averilla Hawkins and together they had seven children:
Robert Louis, Mary Jane, Samuel, George, John Thomas, Catherine, and Margaret. In the
last 3uarter of the 19th century, Robert Louis Mitchell built the Winfield Mitchell
house”, Samuel built the Markline house (HA-Nn83 )10 414 °v°ntuf}1y occupied his
father's house; John Thomas built the Mitchell Tenant house #1,
in the Mitchell-Magness house. '

and Margaret lived

John Thomas Mitchell had two sons, George and Alonzo. George's house burned;
Alonzo lived in what is called the Mitchell tenant house #1 and inherited Robert Louis
Mitchell's house, John Winfield Mitchell, son of George Mitchell, then inherited the
property of Alonzo Mitchell who had no children of his own.l2

Thus, mest of the Mitchell houses on Snake Lane were built during the last quarter
of the 19th century by the children of Robert Mitchell,

Footnotes

1 Liber JLGC, Folio 239

2 Liber JLGD, Folio 16

3 Ref. Liber JLGC, Folio 239
4 Liber JLGR,Folio 257

S5 Liber JLGE, Folio 416

6 Liber JLGP, Folio 430

7 Mitchell family archives
8 HD 14/87

9 ALJ 32/190
10 ALJ 32/464
11 ALJ 36/186

12 ALJ 64/373



Erchitectural Significance of Mitchell Properties in Snake Lane vicinity FJA"l(}EBi%

Although unimpressive singly, this cluster of houses in the Snake Lane vicinity
represents a good cross-section of Harford County's small farmhouses built in the second
half of ,the 19th century. BEach is ordinary and, thus, together they represent the sur-
prising variety of vernacular forms built at that time. None seems distinctive, but,
on closer examination, no two are the same (although at least one house was a deliberate
imitation of its neighbor).

There are certain common denominators among these buildings. They are all two story
frame structures with gable roofs. Most are L or T shaped, with 6/6 sash windows and
brick end chimneys (for stoves). They are of various construction: clapboard, shingle,
board-and-batten, (However, most have been covered in asphalt shingles or aluminum siding,
so the original materials are not apparent.) There is minimal exterior ornament: the
shutters, gable returns, and carved porch brackets on the Winfield Mitchell house represent
the height of fancy; the Wakeland-Gorrell house with its projecting vestibule and colored
glass windows is an anomaly., Similarly, the interior plans are functional: one or two
rooms in each story of the main section, one or two rooms in the el, with a staircase
tucked in between. Or, if the staircase is in the center of the main section as in
larger houses, it is not given undue prominence by being set apart in a hallway (again,
except for the Wakeland-Gorrell house); it is against one wall of one of the rooms,
Utilitarian, functional, with few conceits-~these are the underlying themes of these houses,

Other motifs are subtler-the relationships between formal and informal elements, for
instance. This dichotomy is represented in various ways: the symmetrical fenestration
on the front facade versus the haphazard arrangement on the rear; the ambiguous relation=-
ship between the facade and the interior arrangement, wherein the former formalizes the
latter, Perhaps the best way to discuss this cluster of seemingly non-descript buildings
is to group them on this basis.,

All houses have a front porch--less one for sitting than one to announce the entrance.
It is the way visitors are introduced to the house and is often the cne element that is
decorated. The porches on these houses are of different shapes-their scale and ornament
in direct proportion to the size and prosperity of the house: The George Jones house
(HA-1053) is absolutely straightforward: three parts built side by side with an entrsnce
in each. The formal entrance, in the west section, has a one bay wide, gable-roofed
portico-and that is the only exterior element that could be considered extraneous, The
Markline house and the Mitchell Tenant house #2 both having two parts, each two bays wide
and two bays deep have undecorated shed-roofed porches spanning their front facades., The
Markline house represents a slightly more formal arrangement than the other two-with its
additions annexed to the rear, leaving the front facade symmetrical and singularly auto-
nomous,

The Mitchell Tenant house #l, which is wider tham the Markline house by one bay and
has a central entrance, correspondingly has a more ornate porch with gable returns and
collared posts., Likewise, instead of the stair being tucked between the front and rear
sections as in the Markline house, the stair is in the center, against the east wall of
the parlor,

The Winfield Mitchell house and the Mitchell-Magness house-both four bays wide, with
entrances in the two center bayse-illustrate well the formal-informal dichotomy that the
other houses suggest, The symmetrical facades, the porches with carved brackets, collared
or turned posts, and central flights of steps represent the public gestures; and the rear
elevations, haphazardly arranged, are for residentd' eyes only, The two entrances-one
leading inte the family parlor, the other into the formal partlo-manifest the dumlitye.

The Bechtold-Lohr and Bonnett-Mitchell houses are both five bays wide-and the latter
was copied deliberately from the former. The porch of the Bechtold-Lohr house with its
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massive rock-faced concrete block piers, tapered columns, and hipped roof was conatructed
after the house was built but is appropriately-and symbolically-prepossessing for a

house of this breadth, Its cousin, the Bonnett-Mitchell house, has a relatively scaled-
down porch with square Doric posts covering the central three bays. Both houses have
central entrances and central sets of porch steps~but no center hall on the interiore.

The formal symmetry of the exteriors bely the simply, functional interioras. Inside of
both are two rooms, the room with the staircase (which is aligned with the entrance) larger
than the other,

Finally-with the ultimate formal arrangement-the Gorrell house is three ba;s wide,
with floor-length windows in the first story., Spanning the facade, the hipped-roofed
porch with square posts shelter~s the projecting three-sided vestibule with a double-
leafed door in the center, flanked by windows with colored glass borders, Inside, the
house has a central hall plan. The principal facade of the Gorrell house has all three
formal elements present in varying degrees in the other houses of this area: the extro-
verted porch, the inflected entrance, and relatively elaborate ornament,
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